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DOJ AND HHS ANNOUNCE ANTI-FRAUD PARTNERSHIP WITH PRIVATE 
INSURERS 
  
Initiative aimed at organized crime rings that rely heavily on physician identity theft 
  
Last week, the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) and U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services (HHS) announced that they will partner with private insurers to 
share information and best practices to deter fraudulent billings that implicate both 
government and private insurance programs, such as Medicare Advantage Plans 
that are subsidized by Medicare and administered by private insurers. While an initial 
work plan will not be finalized until September, a press release issued by the DOJ 
and HHS states that the partnership generally will focus around sharing claims data 
and information about specific schemes, utilized billing codes and geographical 
hotspots. Importantly, statements by officials indicate that the initiative is, in part, a 
response to international organized crime rings that have defrauded Medicare 
Advantage plans of hundreds of millions of dollars and which rely heavily on the 
misappropriation of physician identifiers, including names and National Provider 
Identifiers (NPI), to carry out the schemes. 
  
For example, in United States v. Michel De Jesus Huarta, et al. (09-20523, S.D. Fla., 
Jan. 27, 2010), eight Cuban nationals living in Miami were charged with conspiracy, 
healthcare fraud and aggravated identity theft in relation to a $55 million scheme to 
defraud several Medicare Advantage Plans, including plans administered by 
WellPoint, Inc. and Humana, Inc., two of the eight insurance companies participating 
in the anti-fraud partnership. To execute the scheme, the defendants set up twenty-
nine medical clinics in five states that purportedly offered infusion therapy injections 
for Medicare beneficiaries with terminal illnesses. Many of the clinics were simply 
post office boxes or abandoned storefronts. 
 
Because claims for infusion therapy injections require a referral by a physician, the 
defendants in Huarta misappropriated the names, NPIs and other identifying 
information of "numerous" physicians to be listed on the claims submitted to the 
private insurers. The defendants would obtain these identifiers from a variety of 
public sources, including CMS’s NPI registry website. In some cases, the defendants 
also would post advertisements in local newspapers seeking "medical directors" for 
the various clinics. The defendants would stage "interviews" with unsuspecting 
physicians, leading them to believe that they were being hired for the medical director 
positions. However, these interviews were merely a ruse for the defendants to obtain 
the physicians’ personal identifying information, including copies of their driver’s 
licenses, medical degrees and other personal information. With the physicians’ 
information, and hundreds of beneficiary identifiers which also were misappropriated, 
the defendants submitted thousands of false infusion therapy injection claims to the 
private insurers offering the Medicare Advantage Plans. The explanation of benefits 
received by each of the victim beneficiaries would list the victim physicians as the 
"referring physician," causing further harm to the physicians’ professional reputations. 
  
In sum, it remains to be seen whether the anti-fraud partnership’s work plan will set 
forth best practices or recommendations to specifically prevent the misappropriation 
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of physician identifiers, including the NPI. Such misappropriation could result in an 
array of adverse business and reputational consequences for an affected physician 
or other provider. However, any federal effort to prevent such misappropriation would 
have to be balanced with the legitimate need of many healthcare entities (private 
payers, laboratories and suppliers) that regularly access and use the NPI to confirm a 
physician’s identity. 
  
For more information, please contact Gregory S. Saikin, gsaikin@bakerlaw.com or 
713.646.1399. 
  

 

 
STERILIZING INSTRUMENTS WITH A COFFEE MACHINE PUTS HOSPITAL IN 
HOT WATER WITH THE NLRB 
  
On a February morning a hospital’s heat, hot water and steam system was being 
repaired. Consequently, a sterilization technician could not use the normal large 
steam sterilizer used for labor and delivery instruments. As a result, the technician’s 
supervisor directed him to use a Sterrad machine (a low temperature sterilizer that 
uses hydrogen peroxide as the sterilant) as a solution to the lack of steam issue. 
After questioning the use of the Sterrad machine as established protocol for 
sterilizing the labor and delivery instruments, the technician then was told by the lead 
tech to use hot water from the break room’s coffee machine as the first step in the 
cleaning process. 
  
Citing his concerns that these procedures were not established protocol and could 
endanger patients, the technician subsequently refused to use the Sterrad 
machine/coffee maker hot water procedure to sterilize the instruments. Based on that 
refusal, the technician was accused of insubordination by his supervisor who also 
complained to the hospital’s human resources (HR) department. Finding no 
established procedure to support the Sterrad machine/coffee maker hot water 
sterilization technique, HR advised against taking corrective action. Instead, it was 
agreed that the technician would be given nondisciplinary coaching during which the 
technician was asked by the HR representative not to discuss the matter with his 
coworkers while the hospital’s "investigation" was ongoing. 
  
The National Labor Relations Board (NLRB) found this action violated Section 7 of 
the National Labor Relations Act (NLRA), which allows employees to engage in 
concerted activities for their mutual aid and protection. In its order, the NLRB found 
that a request could be made that an employee not discuss a pending investigation if 
the employer could show that it has a legitimate business justification that outweighs 
its employee’s NLRA rights. One Board member dissented from part of the decision. 
The dissenting member believed that the request not to discuss the matter was a 
suggestion rather than a policy. 
  
According to the NLRB’s decision, the hospital’s generalized concern with protecting 
the integrity of its investigation was insufficient to outweigh the employee’s NLRA 
rights. In order to justify a nondisclosure request, the hospital must determine for 
each investigation whether there is a particular need for the nondisclosure request; 
for example, witnesses in need of protection, evidence in danger of being destroyed, 
testimony in danger of being fabricated, or a need to prevent a cover-up. Absent a 
particular need for confidentiality, an employer generally cannot prohibit an employee 
from discussing the hospital’s investigation of his or her actions with other 
employees. 
  
An employer generally may not, without violating the NLRA, discipline or otherwise 
threaten, restrain or coerce employees because they engage in protected concerted 
activities. Consequently, when limitations are being imposed on an employee’s right 
to discuss an investigation that could be construed as impacting the employee’s right 
to engage in concerted activities for the employee’s mutual aid and protection, 
providers should make a specific decision justifying the need for confidentiality. 
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The hospital also included in its confidentiality agreement a prohibition against 
sharing private employee information such as salaries and discipline. The NLRB left 
the administrative law judge’s decision in place that prohibited the hospital from 
restricting employees from discussing salaries or disciplinary matters. 
  
For more information, please contact Robert M. Wolin, rwolin@bakerlaw.com or 
713.646.1327. 
 

 
 
340B PROGRAM REGISTRATION DEADLINES CHANGED 
  
Effective October 1, 2012, the Health Resources and Services Administration, Office 
of Pharmacy Affairs moved the deadline for 340B program registration of new 
covered entities and additions of outpatient facilities from 30 days before the start of 
each quarter to approximately 75 days before the start of each quarter. 
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The new registration periods for new covered entities and the addition of outpatient facilities will be: January 1 -- January 
15 for an effective start date of April 1; April 1 -- April 15 for an effective start date of July 1; July 1 -- July 15 for an 
effective start date of October 1; and October 1 -- October 15 for an effective start date of January 1. 340B covered 
entities will not be permitted to register outside of these periods. 
 
The 340B program regulations permit covered entities to contract with pharmacies to provide 340B pharmacy services to 
the covered entity’s patients. Historically, these contract pharmacies have not been subject to the 340B program 
registration deadlines. As of October 1, 2012, new contract pharmacies will be subject to the new registration periods. 
 
The 340B program provides significant drug cost savings to organizations eligible for the 340B discounts, including 
Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs) (including FQHC look-alikes, community health centers, migrant health 
centers, healthcare for the homeless programs, health centers for residents of public housing, Office of Tribal Programs or 
urban Indian organizations), disproportionate share hospitals, children’s hospitals, critical access hospitals, freestanding 
cancer hospitals, sole community hospitals, rural referral centers, family planning projects receiving a grant or contract 
under Section 1001 of the Public Health Service Act, entities receiving certain grants for outpatient early intervention 
services for HIV disease, certain state-operated AIDS Drug Assistance Programs, certain black lung clinics receiving 
funds under the Black Lung Benefits Act, comprehensive hemophilia diagnostic treatment centers receiving funds under 
section 501(a)(2) of the Social Security Act, certain Native Hawaiian Health Centers, certain urban Indian organizations, 
certain entities receiving assistance under title XXVI of the Public Health Service Act and certain entities receiving funds 
under 42 U.S.C. § 247c for the treatment of sexually transmitted diseases or 42 U.S.C. § 247b for the treatment of 
tuberculosis. 
  
For more information, please contact Robert M. Wolin, rwolin@bakerlaw.com or 713.646.1327. 
  

 
 
"PUZZLING" THROUGH THE AFFORDABLE CARE ACT’S EMPLOYER PROVISIONS -- PIECE BY PIECE 

Baker Hostetler’s Employee Benefits Group has initiated a special healthcare reform series of articles, analyses and 
commentaries to help employers piece together how the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act affects them. The 
initial articles -- which offer an overview of the employer mandate and a timeline for employer-sponsored group health 
plan compliance initiatives -- provide the foundational building blocks for a series of articles that will be produced by the 
Employee Benefits Group between now and the end of 2012. For more information, please contact John J. McGowan at 
jmcgowan@bakerlaw.com or 216.861.7475; Jennifer A. Mills at jmills@bakerlaw.com or 216.861.7874; or Susan 
Whittaker Hughes at shughes@bakerlaw.com or 216.861.7841. 
  

 
 
EVENTS CALENDAR 

August 7 
  
Houston partner Robert M. Wolin will speak on "Practicing Medicine and Nursing Across Borders: Legal Issues" at the 
Mercer Corporate Health Directors Network Meeting co-sponsored by The Johns Hopkins Education and Research 
Center for Occupational Safety and Health in Washington, D.C. 
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August 14 
  
Houston counsel Lynn Sessions will speak on "Dept. of Health & Human Services HIPAA Audits: How to Prepare" at a 
webinar sponsored by ePlace Solutions. 
  
August 15 
  
Houston counsel Lynn Sessions will speak on "The 2012 Top Privacy Concerns for Companies and Best Practices for 
Cyber Breach Preparedness" at a webinar sponsored by LexisNexis. 
  
October 9 
  
Houston counsel Lynn Sessions will speak on "All Hands on Deck: An ERM Approach to Creating Collaboration between 
Compliance, Risk & Legal" at the annual meeting of the American Society for Healthcare Risk Management in 
Washington, D.C. 
  
October 30 
  
Houston counsel Lynn Sessions will speak on "Lessons from Cutting Edge Transactions in Health Care and Life Sciences 
- HIPAA/HITECH Compliance" at the Current Issues in IP Contracting conference in Houston, Texas. 
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